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ST. JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH

~RUXTON
~RIVATE

CAPSULE

1886

The congregation of St. John's Methodist Episcopal Church forms
a link with the period before Emancipation. The church body traces

its origins to the efforts of both free blacks and
aided by a local land-owning family, the Fishpaws.

slaves who were
The church

building is a replacement structure of 1886 but probably stands on

the foundations of a log structure built in 1835.

This congregation's

history can be documented by deeds, mortgages, and various county
maps. A water-color drawing of the original church building executed
by Eliza Hawkins survives and bears the date of 18%5. The first

minister was James Aquilla Scott, a free man and a
whose residence on Falls Road can be found on the 1

blacksnmith,
850 county map.

The surviving church is a gem-like example of country gothic,
constructed in a tasteful manner by a - Towson carpenter named
George Horn or Horne. The builder's identity is provided by the

Baltimore Sun's report of the cornerstone ceremony.

The Scott family

has maintained this church through the entire period of declining

membership and financial burdens.
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1. Name
historic . R L S e
' Fitdm ) C"ln""\(&ﬂ St hﬂ s Cburch I L
2. Loeation
street & number 7538 Bellona Avenue — not for publication
city, town Ruxton ____vicinity of congressional district Second
state Maryland code 24 county Baltimore code 005
3 Classification
Tt jory Ownership Status Frasent Use
disliict — - public — orcugied -— - agrivriture — museum
=0 building(s) _X_ private _X_ unoccupied - . commercial — park
.. —. Structure — both _ - work in progress - .- educational —— private residence
. -=8ite Public Acquisilion Accessible - entertainment —religlous
.. - object — - In process —- . yos: restricted - . government —— scientific
beling considered - yes:unrestricted - . industrial — transportation
_X_no ' _ _ military _X_other: None

4. Owner of E_’ropevty

Trustees of the Colored Methodist Protestant St. John's Chapel of Baltimore Co-nf'j—
rame c/o Mrs.Marie Scott Brown and Miss Esther Scott

5’.’.2?'.& number 6203 Falls Road

city. town Baltimore — vicinity of stale Maryland 21204%

3. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds. etc.  Baltimore County Courthouse

street & number 401 Bosley Avenue

ity town Towson state Maryland 21204

s e sam e e e———— - o - o4 Tim — - -

ﬂ

3. Reprasaniation in i .xaf‘tmg Suiey ..‘.‘j“"'

Maryland Historical Trust
Sites_ Icventory ——

til_I}m has this property been determined elegible? ____ yes =l no

cate 1976 -1979 _ —federal Xx__state ___county ___local

* -:aitary for survey records Maryland Historical Trust

¥ e Annapolis state  Mary'and
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Cundition Cl ek one Clieck one

—.. excellent . deteriorated unaltered X criginal site

—.X good —.—ruins X altered — moved oate o s
— fair — _ unexposed

Describe the present and original {if known) physical appearance

SUMMARY DESCRIPTICN

St. John's Church, Ruxton, in Baltimore County is a late nineteenth century f[rime
Gothic Revival gable-roofed structure with board ‘and batten siding, stylized lancet
windows, and Queen Anne decorative detailing. The building rests on a rubble stone
foundation facing east and bears a cornerstone (southeast corner) inscribed "St. Jolin's
A.U.M.P. Church A.D. 1886". The interior has architrave moldings; narrow verticle
board wainscoting; turned balusters, newels, and columns at the altar; plastered valls
andé ceilings; narrow board flooring; and oak pews. The integrity of the church is good.
The property is erhanced by a one and a half story stuccoed stone house which is
believed to date from about 1835 and used as a parsonage and a turn of the century,
possibly 1890s, simple frame rectangular social hall. The parsonage has extensive
fire damage to the interior, though the stone walls rerain intsct, and the social
hall is in poor condition but does retain much of its original features.

GLCNERAL DESCRIPTION

The church is a late nineteenth century frame Gothic Revival structure witih Queen
/nne decorative detailing. The rectangular building, which rests on a rubble stone
foundation, measures 35 fecet 11 inches by 20 feet 7 inches and has three principal
windows on the side or north and south elevations and two principal windows and a
central entrance on the east or facade elevation. A cornerstone (southeast corner)
"s inscribed "St. John's A.U.M.P. Church A.D. 1836". The exterior of the structure
~heathed with board and batten siding with scaled shingling in the gables (east
d west elevations). The roof is covered with new fiber shingles and has a low
sick chimney protruding along the south side.

The principal windows have louvered shutters and double-hung wooden sashes with
four lights and are stylized lancet type on the exterior and rectangular on the
interior. The entranceway has paneled double doors beneath a rectangular transom
with stained glass lights and a CGothic influenced surround. Circular windows with
square and rectangular lights are located in both gable ends. The interior has
archtrave moldings on the windows anc door; narrow verticle board wainscoting; turned
balustered railing, newels, and columns at the altar; plastered walls and ceiling;
narrow board flooring; and oak pews.

The building known as the "parsonage" is a one and a half story stuccoed rubble
stone structure which is believed Lo date from about 1835 when the original church on
this site was erected. The house, which was extensively damaged by fire in 1961,
hzs a three bay facade or cast clevation with a central entrance and consisting of

one room up, one rcom down,
destroyed by the fire. The
wing) have lost integritLy.

Below is a description
nield, II:

and a one story frame wing to the west which was completely
stone walls remain intact but the frame portions (roof and
The frame wing probably dated from about 1900.

T

of the building prepared about 1978 for the Trust by Vzyne

" The parsonage is a true one~and-one-half story dwelling with a plan of one roun

up and one down, with a single room added to the rear (or west).

Dimensions are

20 feet, 3 inches on the main facade by a depth of 18 feet, 4 inches.

SCE COXTIIICATION SEEFRT #1
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3. Significanece ‘f:% BA-1559
Period Arcas of Significance-—-Check and justify below
. prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ___ landscape architecture ____ religion
— 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic _...— conservation — law —_science
——1500-1599 ___ agricuiture . economics —_literature - —— sculpture
—— 16001698 _X_ architecture - €ducation — military — social/
—1700-1799 ___art — engineering — music . humanitarian
X _1800-1893 ___ commerce ——exploration’settlement ___ philosophy —theater
— 1800- - communications - industry . —__ politics’government  ____ transportation

— invention —— other (specify)

Specific dates 1886 (church) Builder'Architect George Horn, builder (church)

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) Applicable Criteria: A and C

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY

The St. John's Church, Ruxton, and its accompanying buildings, the ''parsonage"
and the social hall, are significant for association with black religious and
social history in the Bare Hills - Ruxton area of Baltimore County. These
buildings were created as a center for the religious and social activities of a
black congregation that was formed in the 1830s and who acquired the site in 1833.
Around the turn of the century, members of the congregation, which was always
small, worked primarily for the affluent white population whose estates and
large houses bordered the complex. As a church built in a modest interpretation
of the Gothic Revival style with Queen Anne influenced decorative detailing,

St. John's Church is a typical example of churches erected .in the rural regions
of Maryland in the late nineteenth century. These buildings characteristically
were small scale frame rectangular structures with sharply pitched gable roofs,
board and batten siding, lancet shaped windows, and shingle decoration. The
.St. John's Church is particularly important in that it remains essentially
intact and thus is an indicator of the craftsmanship available in the regiom.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

The church history is intimately tied to the Scott family of the Bare Hills
neighborhood on the Falls Road a mile or more north of the present Baltimore city
line. The church was originally convenient to Falls Road residents but, in 1861,
it was rendered somewhat less accessible by the impoundment of Jones Falls and
the filling up of Lake Roland. ‘ R

The Scott family traces its line to a free man, believed to have been part
Indian, Tobias Scott of Saint Mary's County. His son, James Aquilla Scott (I) was
born in 1784 and settled in Baltimore County, purchasing land on Falls Road from
Johnzee Hook in 1839 (2). James Aquilla Scott (I) practiced as a blacksmith and
served as a minister. His home at Falls Road and Walnut Avenue appears as "A.
Scott" property on Sidney's 1850 county map. (3) The Scotts, Aquilla and his
wife, had at least eleven children, including Aquilla Scott (II). (4)

In 1833, Elijah Fishpaw and his wife, Catherine, and also Mary Fishpaw deeded
three-quarters of an acre of "The Fopyard" to Benjamin Johnson, Aquilla Scott,
Thomas Harvey, Wesley Hayes, Joshua Harvey,'" . . . all colored people and decendants
from Africa who are nominated trustees for certain purposes hereafter . . . in
trust to and for . . . the use of that part of the descendants of Africa which
forms and makes the Bethel Episcopal Methodist Religious Society for their use
to make a burying ground on for the interment of their dead and for them to erect
a meeting house thereon for the purpose of meeting there as often as they may
think proper in order to worship Almighty God in spirit and truth . . ." (5)

~

- . SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #3
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10. Geograpitical Data
Acreage of nominated property __.75 acres
: Quadrangle‘name",.‘QQQKE_Y_S_\li_llQ_QQad- Quadrangle scale _1:24000

UMT References
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Verbal boundary description and justification

The nominated boundaries are delineated on Continuation Sheet #8

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/A _code county : code

state ' code county : ' code

11. Form Prepared By

Ronald L. Andrews .
nametitle  John McGrain

organization Maryland Historical Trust date November 1981
street & number 21 State Circle ‘ telephone 301-269-2438 .
city or town Annapolis . ' - state ' Maryland 21401

12. State Historic Preservatlon Officer Certification |

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

— national —__ state X __local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

title STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER ‘_ date

- For HCRS use only Y1
i hereby certify that this property is lncluded in the National Register

e Keepef of the National Reglster HET I
';*:{" vl -
Attest. W e
Chlef of Reglstranon B e




e ' ]

-

BA-1559
Baited - ° "es O arteicat of the Interior [
Heritage €. - svaiion and Recreation Service | For HCRS use only
- - - - .‘- }
National Register of Historic Places | received
Inventory—Nomination Form 'Fuateemmu
Continuation sheet Item number ;PN Page 1

St. John's Church
Baltimore County
Maryland

CENERAL DESCRIPTION (Continued)

The walls are made of uncoursed brownish fieldstone that has been stuccoed. The
stone rises to the apex of the gables. There is also a gable-end roof which has an
almost oversized roof dormer. There are no eaves on the ends, and even the sides have
an overhang of only 10 to 12 inches. While the dormer appears to be original to the
present roof, its six-light casements are not compatible with the four-light casements
of the gables. Machine-sawn rafters and cut wire nails suggest that if this buildi.g
is more than B0 or 90 years old, its roof has been changed.

Each end of the parsonage is windowless except for a small casement window in
each gable. That of the north is centralized but the south window is off center to
the west. It is interesting to note that these deep casements are presently nmounled
on the inside bay of the opening. The main facade faces east, as does the church.

It is three bays wide: a centrally located door flanked by windows. The south wii jow,
however, is not as large as the north and it may be an alteration. The door and north
window share the same wooden jack arch and the taller north window has a large
fieldstone sill.

The west facade is nearly obliterated by the frame shed-roofed addition. Interior
examination suggests that it once had a door on the north side and a single window on
the south side of it (which might have been the original appearance of the east facade
as well).

The single room downstairs is characterized by the windowless north wall and the
presence of the enclosed stairs on the south wall. A flue chimney occupies the center
of the west wall and separated the door and window.

The original mouldings of this room are a plain architrave that is not unlike the
design <een in some Federal period houses.

It appears that the south window of the east wall was cut through to light the
stairs. The enclosure of those stairs is not original and one wonders what relation-
ship there is, if any, between this fact and the off-center gable window at the top.
The placement of that window and the protruding beam on the exterior of the south end
could be indicative of a fireplace; however, the south side would be an odd place for
one.

The second level is characterized by its knee walls and trapezoidal ceiling. The
room is divided transversely by a partition. That wall bisects the dormer, wheih gf es
each half an east window and a gable window.

Deterioration in this area allows one to see machine-cut laths and parts of the
roof construction. The roof consists of vertically sawn timbers cut by machine.
Rafters are joined at the top by a ridgeboard and the trusses are nailed to flat false
plates, in some instances with wire nails. The upper half of each knee-wall is v+ ."

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (Continued)

The social hall is a turn of the century, possibly 1890s, one and a half
story frame rectangular structure with a north/south axised gable roof and
amall shed-roofed one-story extrusions on the gabled ends. The building is
covered with brown-toned insule brick siding and rests on a masonry foundation.
An interior chimney projects from near the center of the east elevation. The
east and west or side elevations have three bays each. The principal windows
of the first floor have long rectangular, double-hung wooden sashes with the
upper quarter paneled shut.

The interior consists of a combination of large and small rooms which is
said not to be the original arrangement. The interior has simple architraves.
The building is in a deteriorated condition though appears to retain much of
its integrity.

The cemetery lies between and to the west of the church and parsonage.
Some gravesites are located under the present driveway. The cemetery was
begun in the 1830s and has been in continuous use though on a limited basis.
Although some of the markers no longer stand erect, most remain in good
condition.

T
il
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St. John's Church
Baltimore County
Maryland

HISTORY AND SUPPORT Continued

The church appears on the water supply survey map of 1852 and on the 1857
decorative county map by Robert Taylor. (6) The original place of worship was log,
and is depicted in a contemporary watercolor by Eliza Hawkins, who marked the
drawing with the date 1835. (7)

James Aquilla Scott dropped dead at age 76 on February 22, 1858. His tombstone
at his Falls Road home graveyard reads, ''Church of AME. Here lies Aquilla Scott
the minister who passed mway while in prayer in the Church below now joins the Church
above." (8)

A stone in the churchyard on Bellona Avenue mentions another early member,
reading, "In memory of Harriett Tate, Beloved Mother of St. Johns . !

The pulpit was taken over by James Aquilla Scott II, who also doubled as a
blacksmith. The second James Aquilla Scott bought a slave wife from a Cuba Road
landowner to rescue her from a life of abuse. Her name was Abnar Gough according
to her gravestone, although Aquilla Scott's will called her Honora. (9)

The church body was incorporated on May 2, 1860, as St. John's Colored Methodist
Protestant Church. (10) 1In July 1866, Aquilla Phillips and his wife, Priscilla
(Scott) Phillips, conveyed the three-to-four acre church property to the trustees
of a corporation entitled "The Colored Methodist Protestant St. John's Chapel of
Baltimore County". The consideration named was $800. (11)

The 1866 deed reflects some problem that had beset the congregation. Aquilla
Phillips had taken personal title to the same property donated to the trustees of
1833 the year before conveying to the new corporation. Phillips purchased it from
a white landowner of the Ruxton area, Lewis J. Roberts, and paid $800. The deed
index failed to show how the trustees lost temporary control of this lot. (12)

The 1876 Tax Ledger described the improvements at "St. John's Methodist P.
Church" as:

Tract of Land E. Side of N.C.R.R. near Lake Roland 1 Acre, less church occup.
Improvements — 2 small stone houses. (13)

E. Robinson's 1882 map of the Baltimore region showed three buildings on a
small lot near Lake Station on the Northern Central Railroad south of Malvern
Avenue. (14)

The original church perished, possibly between 1876 and 1886, because a new
structure was established that year, and the county paper announced:

SEE CONTINUATION SEEET #4
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St. Johan's Church
Baltimore County
Maryland

HISTORY AND SUPPORT (Continued)

~ The corner-stone for St. John's A.U.M.P. Church, Lake Roland, will
be laid by Rev. E. W. Scott on Sunday, August 29, at 3 o'clock p.m.,
to which all are invited. (15)

The ceremonies were reported in the Sun the following day, and the text
sheds some light on the church history:

Corner—-stone Laying. The corner-stone of the St. John's A.U.M.P.
Church, near Lake Station, Northern Central Railroad, was laid
yesterday with appropriate ceremonies. Rev. D. W. Scott, president

of the A.U.M.P. Conference, preached an excellent sermon, the service
being held in the open air, in the shade of a number of large trees.
The contents of the stone were a copy of the Bible, a Methodist hymn
book, a copy of the Discipline of the church, also a copy of the SUN

of Saturday, a paper on which was written the names of the President
of the United States, Governor of Maryland, and a list of judges of

the Baltimore County Circuit. The church will be a pretty little frame
building, 20 by 35 feet, situated on a hill overlooking Lake Roland,
about a quarter of a mile above Lake Station. The corner—-stone is
situated in the south-east corner of the church. A number of members
of the colored lodge of the order of the Seven Wise Men of Melvale,
were in attendance. Mr. George Horn, of Towsontown, is the builder. (16)

The papers also show that the Rev. E. W. Scott, a member of the founding family,
preached the same evening at a camp meeting held at Paradise Grove on Merryman's
Lane (somewhere near present University Parkway). Other newspaper mentions show
that Edwin Scott (1841-1891) was the pastor of Towson's black church, St. James
A.U.M.P. (17)

The new church was of tasteful design, its windows trimmed in stained glass,
its . outer walls in the purposely picturesque board and batten format. The contractor
is listed in State directories as a carpenter in Towson in 1878 and 1887, the last
name spelled both Horn and Horne. (18)

The second James Aquilla Scott lived until 1892. The church was affiliated
with the A.M.E. denomination but three generations of Scotts held the title as
trustees. In the 1950s, the parish started to decline due to changes in transportation
patterns, the development of other churches, and the disappearance of live-in help in
the large suburban houses of Ruxton. The local church structure tried to persuade
the family to surrender the church to the conference, but the Scotts declined.
Eventually, the congregation could no longer support a minister and, after carrying
on with occasional services, the doors were closed.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET {5
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St. John's Church

Baltimore County
Maryland '

HISTORY AND SUPPORT (Continued)

The Scott family found themselves forced to pay residential taxes in spite
of the fact that the entire premises is either church or cemetery property. To
propound the problem, the State Department of Assessment and Taxation charged them
with two acres of land and also failed to mark the site on the tax map and, in
addition to that, indexed the account to the wrong tax map and (the one containing
Lutherville), and also listed the address as the Falls Road. (19)

In 1980-1981, with the help of the Ruxton-Riderwood-Lake Roland Improvement
Association, the family was relieved of the tax burden and assured of a three-year
refund. In early 1981, a number of newspaper articles in a neighborhood publication
recounted the struggles of the trustees to maintain the chapel, and a scout group
agreed to help weed the cemetery, and the Baltimore County Landmarks Preservation
Commission agreed to consider the site for the Preliminary Landmarks List.

Shortly after receiving the limited local publicity in the Roland Park-based
publication, The Messenger, a suspicious fire took place in the parsonage on the
afternoon of March 23, 1981, burning some relatively late partitions and carpenter
work in the attic.

NOTES:

1. Gail O'Donovan, 'Notes, St. John's Methodist Episcopal Church, and the Scott
Family'", Ruxton, Md., Typescript, March 20, .1981.

2. Baltimore City Deeds, TK 232:222.

3. J. C. Sidney and P. J. Browne, "Map of the City and County of Baltimore,
Maryland, from Original Surveys', James M. Stephens, Publisher, Baltimore, 1850.

4. O0'Donovan, Notes, 1981.

5. Baltimore City Deeds, TK 293: (October 29, 1839).

6. Robert Taylor, "Map of the City and County of Baltimore from Actual Surveys",
Baltimore, 1857. Thomas P. Chiffelle, '"Map of the City of Baltimore and Part of
Baltimore County, including the Valley of the Great Gunpowder River . . .",
A. Hoen, Baltimore, 1852.

7. Original artwork in possession of Mrs. Marie Brown, 6203 Falls Road, Bare Hills.

8. O'Donovan, "Notes'".

9. Baltimore County Wills, JEB 14:89.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #6




FHE8-300 (11-78) 4 3 ‘: ’ )
. BA-1559

United States Departiment of the Interior o

Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

Fo;HCRS use only
Mational Register of Historic Places jreceived
Inventory—Nomination Form

gy

e -,

Ty

date éntéreq S

Continuation sheet item number 8 Page 6

St. John's Church

Baltimore County

Maryland

NOTES: (Continued)

10. Baltimore County Incorporation Records, Index, Liber JB 1, Index Page 'S".

The full text was copied into the Baltimore County Chatel Records, Liber 4:175,
a series that has been moved to the Hall of Records, Annapolis.

11. Baltimore County Deeds, GHL 51:134.

12. B.C. Deeds, JHL 47:57.

13. Baltimore County Tax Ledger, District 9, 1876, n.p. No stomne houses are to
to be found in the John Fishpaw Jr. listing for "The Hopyard" in the 1798
tax list.

14. E. Robinson, '"Map of the City of Baltimore and Vicinity", New York, 1882.

15. Baltimore County Union, August 21, 1886.

. 16. Baltimore Sun, August 30, 1886, p.4, col. 5.

17. American, August 30, 1886, p. 4. Baltimore County Union, November 27, 1886.

18. John R. Bland, Ed., The Maryland Directory and State Gazetteer, 1887. The
Baltimore Publishing Company: Baltimore, 1887, p. 121. Also, 1878, p. 544.

19. O'Donovan, "Notes', 1981.
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St. John's Church
Baltimore County
Maryland

MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Baltimore County Land and Will Records, Courthouse, Towson, Maryland

Maryland Historical Trust Historic Sites Inventory: Baltimore County (BA-1559,
BA-1771, and BA-1772). John McGrain and Wayne Nield, II, surveyors.

0'Donovan, Gail. Notes on file at the Maryland Historical Trust, Annaﬁolis,
Maryland
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Verbal boundary description and justification

The nominated boundaries are delineated on Continuation Sheet #8

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/A code

county

code

county

11. Form Prepared By

Ronald L. Andrews

vname/ﬁﬂe‘ John McGrain -
organization Maryland Historical Trust date November 1981
street & number 21 State Circle telephone 301.——269-—2438

city or town Annapolis state Maryland 21401
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State Historic Preservation ﬁﬁic@r@@ﬁiﬁcmmn

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

——_ national —___state X local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—

665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature
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STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER
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title date
| For HCRS use only :

| hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

f L ' date
. Keeper of the National Register

: Attest:

date .

]




cifae 300, (11-78) ( ( )
. .-

i):.:ited States Department of the Interior . BA-1559
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service E For HCRS use orily
~National Register of Historic Places [ received
inventory—Nomination Form dateentered
St. John's Church, Ruxton B Bkl B s i
Continuation sheet Baltimore County, Maryland Item number 10 Page 8§
| | N
Section 10. nominated boundaries l

3rd fine of \
Semuef's Hope

\
\Z | 2 boun ddr)'-

Samuel's Hope

7

zﬂd
bauna/srr
of Hop
Yurwi
an
\
N
¥
N 'tﬂafﬂ;&'{u‘s
nombogf\
Second or north
, / line of Samyel's
148. 5 __l /Jafe. ond Fhe
‘ Hop Yard
Property Plat drawn \
from calls in Baltimore \
County Deeds GHL 51, page 134
and JHL 47, page 27

not to scale




Nz
.\\ ﬂ?ﬂ{ "—-ﬁ‘?d o "f/

=

- LR,
.

BALT MOIE(ICITY HALL)3 *

Prolg 211 r('ayaog

-
:‘l Cochranz
_’\. o Pond
- See, 1o
.'\""‘\' l. 1

g

N -

/

'Gt) JUoqulﬁgI

U”HJ Suyor

-
-

6551~V lj



BA-1559

TOWSON (Gou
BALTIMORE (uu

o
z
L=
-
: 3
SR g
erville\ ;
T >
25/
gy
o
a
z
2
{3
P

BALTIMORE (CITY MALL) 8.7 M.

5t. John's Chuich,
RUJ\ f‘oﬂ

.L— -..I -
o

,f
]

: U 3g22230"
V1726237307
JALTiIMCIE i -.B 1 &8 ~
ROAN (1 ASSIFICATION Q‘b




{=))
)
i
—
I
<€
o=

.,.,__ s

G [ ' oAl Al | 3 o . 3o s




BA-1559







BA-1559

-







]
\e Cu L PPt
23
A
cappdZ al THHNHfKIa 22
Ja . ‘ T 18 =AERAZI3 L0
- 4 ) S

| ofF =







ef 156N
<. \avg Quurca — Cenpeioy \

L ALS TR R Co 1Y

V. Cu {adve

<. \

i vt OOl

N O S0

CoParZ 25 T H NN ¥.0 A2
il € 5 >PEBZI3108d

f 3

Ly O € R 2 Lo Sawe | \veav G YN wud T







O , !

CRPDIZ S0 T MM N X208 BZZ
+ 19 SEERZ O3 L0




— o <A L, te A o
Gasements on 5% Jelns Thurch —seoegan 1se

L ISTORICAL TR , U mmitrm
MARYLAND HISTORICAL UST MMI*# 03155 5608
. MAGT 4 0317715¢04-
. INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY
BINAME
HisToric ST. JOHN'S METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH BA 1559
ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE BA 1771
AND/OR COMMON
BEJLOCATION
sTReeTaNUMBER 7538 Bellona Avenue {(Church)
- 7536 Bellona Avenue (Parsonage)
CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Ruxton — VICINITY OF 2nd
STATE COUNTY )
Maryland Baltimore County
EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT —PUBLIC —OCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
<* BUILDING(S) &PRIVATE &UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
. _STRUCTURE ——BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS —EDUCATIONAL _—PRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS —_YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC
_—BEING CONSIDERED —YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
) _NO __MILITARY X otHERVVacant
Y OWNER OF PROPERTY

Trustees of The Colored Methodist Protestant St. John's Chapél of

NAME Baltimore County, c/o Mrs. Marie Brown,Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER et al.
6203 Falls Road
CITY, TOWN ‘ ~ STATE, zip code
‘ Baltimore —__ VICINITY OF ___Marvland 21209
EJLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber #: GHL 51
meaioTAY OF pEEDSETC.  COUnty Courts Building Follo #: 134
STREET & NUMBER
401 Bosley Avenue
CITY, TOWN ‘ STATE
— Towson Maryland 21204
EJREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
e MHT's Towson Survey of 1979
(Based on erroneous tax maps.)
DATE
1979 _FEDERAL XSTATE __COUNTY _ LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR .
SURVEYRECORDS 21 State Circle (also at Historic Towson, Inc.)
CITY. TOWN STATE

Annapolis Maryland 21401

—




ST. JOHN'S METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH, Z4-1555
DESCRIPTION ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
;,[
—_EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED YUNALTERED (CH) _VORIGINAL SITE
_GOOD vauins { PAES.) YALTERED  ((PAES, ) _MOVED  DATE
Year (CH) __UNEXPOSED ’

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
1. Church

The cornerstone of this Gothic Revival building iden-
tifies it as "St. Johns A.U.M.P. Church A.D. 1886." This re-
placement church measures 35 feet, 11 inches deep by 20 feet,
7 inches wide and in all probability stands u@on the founda-
tions of the log church shown in a watercolor executed in
1835. The church is of frame, three narrow bays wide by
three longer bays deep. The tall windows and doors are regu-
lar in their placement and have frames exhibiting a modified
lancet arch. Each window is fitted with louvered shutters.
The\sashes are double-hung, in four-over-four format, with
lancet-shaped lights at the top. The glass is clear.

The external covering is board-and-batten with the gable
ends being decorated with fishscale shingles.

The gable-end roof is steeply pitched, is covered with
modern shingles and has a closed-cap interior flue chimney in
the middle of its south side.

. The east end is the "front" of the building and is the
most formal in appearance. The lancet arch entrance occupies
the central bay. It has a Queen Anne style transom which com-
pliments the oculus in the gable above. This circular opening
is filled with colored élass fixed with a grid pattern of mul-
lions typical of the Queen Anne fashion. The window was set

at an angle, however, upsetting the harmony of the arrangement.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY (continued)
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—INVENTION

&9

u SIGNIFICANCE ‘ST. JOHN'S METHODIST EPISCCPAIL CHURCH
ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
“ T EMISTORIC  _ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING _LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE X RELIGION
— .400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 — AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY X SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING __MusIC __THEATER
X 1800-1899 __COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1800- __COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

1886 (Church) .

Before 1876 (parsonageB)UlLDER/ARGHITECT George Horn

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

L~

' SUMMARY

The congregation of St. John's Methodist Episcopal
Church forms a link with the period before Emancipation; the
church body traces its origins to the efforts of both free
blacks and slaves. (1) The parsonage is a physical link with
the earliest period. The church building is a replacement
structure of 1886, but most likely stands on the old founda-
tion of 1835, and is a gem-like example of country Gothic Re-
vival as prescribed for small congregations by the theory of
ecclesiology. The key documents in the history of the Church
have survived, and various 19th Century maps show the chapel
and sometimes the outbuildings.

@

The Church history is intimately tied to the Scott fami-
ly of Bare Hills neighborhood on the Falls Road a mile or
more north of the present Baltimore City line. The Church
was originally convenient to Falls Road residents but, iﬁ
1861, it was rendered somewhat less accessible by the im-

poundment of Jones Falls and the £illing up of Lake Roland.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY (continued)
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nMA]OR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES... . st..JouN'S METHODIST
EPTSCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S. PARSONAGE =

Architectural descriptions by Wayne Nield II in Historic Towson,
Inc.'s Survey.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

EUIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 0. 75

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

S85% W 9 perches (148 f£ft.)
S4% E 15 " (247.5 £t.)
N85% E 9" until it intersects northline of "Samuel's

Hope" or the "Hop Yard"
With straight line to Beginning.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE NONE COUNTY NONE
STATE . COUNTY
NONE . NONE
[$1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / FITLE
John W. McGrain, Sites Surveyor
ORGANIZATION DATE
Baltimore County Office of Planning and Zoning March 25, 1981
STREET & NUMBER ) ) TELEPHONE
401 Bosley Avenue 494-3495
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Towson Maryland 21204

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

TheVSurvey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PS- 1108
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CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 3, ITEM 7, PAGE 4 ST. JOHN'S METHODIST
EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

through to light the stairs. The enclosure of those stairs is
not original and one wonders what relatiénship there is, if any,
between this fact and the off-center gable window at the top.
The placement of that windéw and the protruding beam on the ex-
terior of the south end could be indicative of a fireplace; how-
ever, the southside would be an odd place for one.

The second level is characterized by its knee walls and
trapezoidal ceiling. The room is divided transversely by a par-
tition. That wall bisects the dormer, which gives each half an
east window and a gable window.

Deterioration'in this area allows one to see machine-cut
laths and parts of the roof construction. The roof consists of
vertically sawn timbers cut by machine. Rafters are joined at
the top by a ridgeboard and the trusses are nailed to flat false
plates, in some instances with wire nails. The upper half of
each knee=-wall is frame.

The fires of March 23 and March 25, 1981, consumed much of
the 20th Century laths and roofing. The rear shed was practical-
ly consuméd. The parsonage was almost purified to its basic
stone cabin starting point. This vernacular-styled dwelling can-
not be Colonial, as no stone structures were found on "The Hop-
vard" in the 1798 tax list.

3. Church Hall (BA 1772)

The church hall has been transformed into a dwelling, des-

cribed as a bungaloid style by Historic Towson's report. The
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CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 4, ITEM 7, PAGE 5 ST. JOHN'S METHODIST

EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

tall windows have been shortened by insertion of wood panels to
reduce their height. The structure is in an advanced state of
decay and its retention is not recommended by inspecting contrac-

tors.
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CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 1, ITEM 8, PAGE 2 ST. JOHN'S METHODIST
EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

The Scott family traces its line to a free man, believed to
have been part Indian, Tobias Scott of Saint Mary's County. His
son, James Aquilla Scott (I) was born in 1784 and settled in
Baltimore County, purchasing land on Falls Road from Johnzee
Hook in 1839 (2). James Aquilla Scott (I) practiced as a black-
smith and served as a minister. His home at Falls Road and Wal-
nut Avenue appears as "A. Scott" property on Sidney's 1850 county
map. (3) The Scotts, Aquilla and his wife, had at least eleven
children, including Aquilla Scott (II). (4)

In 1833, Elijah Fishpaw and his wife, Catherine, and also
Mary Fishpaw deeded three-quarters of an acre of "The Hopyard" to
Benjamin Johnson, Aquilla Scott, Thomas Harvey, Wesley Hayes,

Joshua Harvey, «ss all colored people and descendants from Afri-
ca who are nominated trustees for certain purposes hereinafter ...
in trust to and for ... the use of that part of the descendants of
Africa which forms and makes the Bethel Episcopal Methodist Reli-
gious Society for their use to make a burving ground on for the
interment of their dead and for them to erect a meeting house
thereon for the purpose of meeting there as often as they may
think proper in order to worship Almighty God in spirit and truth
.." (5)

The church appears on the water supply survey map of 1852 and
on the 1857 decorative county map by Robert Taylor. (6) The ori-
ginal place of worship was log, and is depicted in a contemporary
watercolor by Eliza Hawkins, who marked the drawing with the date

1835. (7)
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CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 2, ITEM 8, PAGE 3, ST. JOHN'S METHODIST
EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

James Aquilla Scott dropped dead at age 76 on February 22,
1858. His tombstone at his Falls Road home graveyard reads,
"Church of AME. Here lies Aquilla Scott the minister who passed
away while in prayer in the Church below now joins the Church
above." (8)

A stone in the churchyard on Bellona Avenue mentions another
early member, reading, "In memory of Harriett Tate, Beloved Moth-
er of St. Johns ...."

The pulpit was taken over by James Aquilla Scott II, who al-
so doubled as a blacksmith. The second James Aquilla Scott
bought a slave wife from a Cuba Road landowner to rescue her from
a life of abuse. Her name was Anar Gough according to her grave-
stone, although Aquilla Scott's will called her Honora. (9)

The church body was incorporated on May 2, 1860, as St.
John's Colored Methodist Protestant Church. (10) In July 1866,
Aquilla Phillips and his wife, Priscilla (Scott) Phillips, con-
veyed the three- to four-acre church property to the trustees of
a corporation entitled "The Colored Methodist Protestant St.
Johns Chapel of Baltimore County." The consideration named was
$800. (11)

The 1866 deed reflects some problem that had beset the con-
gregation. Aquilla Phillips had taken personal title to the same
property donated to the trustees of 1833 the year before convey-
ing to the new corporation. Phillips purchased it from a white

landowner of the Ruxton area, Lewis J. Roberts, and paid $800.




CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 3, ITEM 8, PAGE 4, ST. JOHN'S METHODIST

EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

The deed index fails to show how the trustees lost temporary

control of this lot. (12)

The 1876 Tax Ledger described the improvements at "St.

John's Methodist P. Church" as:

Tract of Land E. Side of N.C.R.R. near Lake Roland

1l Acre, less church occup.

Improvements - 2 small stone houses. (13)

E. Robinson's 1882 map of the Baltimore region showed three

buildings on a small lot near Lake Station on the Northern Cen-

tral Railroad south of Malvern Avenue. (14)

The original church perished, possibly between 1876 and

1886, because a new structure was established that year, and the

county paper announced:

The corner-stone for St. John's A.U.M.P. Church,
Lake Roland, will be laid by Rev. E. W. Scott
on Sunday, August 29, at 3 o'clock p.m., to
which all are invited. (15)

The ceremonies were reported in the Sup the following day,

and the text sheds some light on the church history:

Corner-stone Laying. The corner-stone of the St.
John's A.U.M.P. Church, near Lake Station, Northern
Central Railroad, was laid yesterday with appropriate
ceremonies. Rev. D. W. Scott, president of the
A.U.M.P. Conference, preached an excellent sermon,
the services being held in the open air, in the shade
of a number of large trees. The contents of the
stone were a copy of the Bible, a Methodist hymn
book, a copy of the Discipline of the church, also a
copy of the SUN of Saturday, a paper on which was
written the names of the President of the United
States, Governor of Maryland, and a list of judges of
the Baltimore County Circuit. The church will be a
pretty little frame building, 20 by 35 feet, situated
on a hill overlooking Lake Roland, about a gquarter of
a mile above Lake Station. The corner-stone is situ-
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EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

ated in the south-east corner of the church. A num-
ber of members of the colored lodge of the order of
the Seven Wise Men of Melvale, were in attendance.

Mr. George Horn, of Towsontown, is the builder. (16)

The papers also show that the Rev. E. W. Scott, a member of
the founding family, preached the same evening at a camp meeting
held at Paradise Grove on Merryman's Lane (somewhere near present
University Parkway). Other newspaper mentions show that Edwin
Scott (1841-1891) was the‘pastor of Towson's black church, St.
James A.U.M.P. (17)

The new church was of tasteful design, its windows trimmed
in stained glass, its outer walls in the purposely picturesque
board and batten format. The contractor is listed in State di-
rectories as a carpenter in Towson in 1878 and 1887, the last
name spelled both Horn and Horne. (18)

The second James Aquilla Scott lived until 1892, The church
was affiliated with the A.M.E. denomination but three generations
of Scotts held the title as trustees. In the 1950s, the parish
started to decline due to changes in transportation patterns, the
development of other churches, and the disappearance of live-in
help in the large suburban houses of Ruxton. The local church
structure tried to persuade the family to surrender the church to
the conference, but the Scotts declined. Eventually, the congre-
gation could no longer support a minister and, after carrying on
with occasional services, the doors were closed.

The Scott family found themselves forced to pay residential

taxes in spite of the fact that the entire premises is either
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church or cemetery property. To propound the problem, the State
Department of Assessment and Taxation charged them with two acres
of land and also failed to mark the site on the tax map and, in
addition to that, indexed the account to the wrong tax map (the
one containing Lutherville), and also listed the address as the
Falls Road. (19)

In 1980-19281, with the help of the Ruxton-Riderwood-Lake Ro~-
land Improvement Association, the family was relieved of the tax
burden and assured of a three-year refund. In early 1981, a num-
ber of newspaper articles in a neighborhood publication recounted
the struggles of the trustees to maintain the chapel, and a scout
group agreed to help weed the cemetery, and the Baltimore County
Landmarks- Preservation Commission agreed to consider the site for
the Preliminary Landmarks List.

Shortly after receiving the limited local publicity in the

Roland Park-based publication, The Messenger, a suspicious fire

took place in the parsonage on the afternoon of March 23, 1981,
burning some relatively late partitions and carpenter work in the
attic.

NOTES:

1. Gail O'Donovan, "Notes, St. John's Methodist Episcopal
Church, and the Scott Family," Ruxton, Md., Typescript,
March 20, 1981l.

2. Baltimore City Deeds, TK 232:222,

3. J. C. Sidney and P. J. Browne, "Map of the City and County

of Baltimore, Maryland, from Original Surveys," James M.
Stephens, Publisher, Baltimore, 1850.
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NOTES contd.

4.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

O'Donovan, Notes, 1981.

Baltimore City Deeds, TK 293: (October 29, 1839).

Robert Taylor, "Map of the City and County of Baltimore from
Actual Surveys," Baltimore, 1857. Thomas P. Chiffelle, "Map
of the City of Baltimore and Part of Baltimore County, in-
cluding the Valley of the Great Gunpowder River ...,"

A. Hoen, Baltimore, 1852.

Original artwork in possession of Mrs. Marie Brown,
6203 Falls Road, Bare Hills.

O'Donovan, "Notes."

Baltimore County Wills, JEB 14:89.

Baltimore County Incorporation Records, Index, Liber JB 1,
Index Page "S." The full text was copied into the Baltimore
County Chatel Records, Liber 4:175, a series that has been
moved to the Hall of Records, Annapolis.

Baltimore County Deeds, GHL 51:134.

B.C. Deeds, JHL 47:57.

Baltimore County Tax Ledger, District 9, 1876, n.p. No stone
houses are to be found in the John Fishpaw Jr. listing for

"The Hopyard" in the 1798 tax list.

E. Robinson, "Map of the City of Baltimore and Vicinity,"
New York, 1882. '

Baltimore County Union, August 21, 1886.

Baltimore Sun, August 30, 1886, p. 4, col. 5.

American, August 30, 1886, p. 4. Baltimore County Union,
November 27, 1886.

John R. Bland, Ed., The Maryland Directory and State Gazet-
teer, 1887. The Baltimore Publishing Company: Baltimore,

1887, p. 121. Also, 1878, p. 544.

O'Donovan, "Notes," 198l.
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LIST OF COLOR SLIDES - ST. JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH

1.
2.
3.
4.

10.
41.

ST'

JOHN'S PARSONAGE

BA 1559
BA 1771

St. John's M.E. Church, Main & north facades, from NE

St. John's
St. John's
St. John's
St. John's
St. John's

shutters closed.

1

7"

1

1

1

H

n

n

1

u

k]

9

k]

9

b

"

& south facade from SE (1980)

rear & south facades, from SW

interior and rear oculus

1

"

19th Century organ

typical side window, outside

St. John's M. E. Church, interior, oak double entrance doors and

stained-glass transom.

Parsonage, main or east facade, from east

Parsonage, south gable end, from south

Parsonage, south gable end and rear; burned-out annex, from SW.

Hall or bungalow (BA 1772) from NE.

All photos except No. 2 taken April 1, 19 .
Office of Planning and Zoning.

A1l photos by J. McGrain,







ST. JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981
Neg located at MHT

Main & north facade, from NE
Photo 1 of 12







ST, JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981
Neg. located at MHT

Main and North facades, from NE
Photo 2 of 12







ST, JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981
Main (east) facade, from east

Neg. located at MHT

Photo 3 of 12







ST. JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981
Neg. located at MHT

Interior and rear oculus

Photo 4 of 12







ST. JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981
Neg. loaated at MHT

TInterior, lectern, side window
Photo 5 of 12







ST. JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559

Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981

Neg. located at MHT

Tnterior & typical side window with
outside shutters closed

Photo 6 of 12







ST, JOHN'S M.E. CHURCH BA 1559

Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981

Neg. located at MHT

Interior, oak double doors and stained
glass transom

Photo 7 of 12
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CAPSULE
3T, JOHN'S CHURCH

The handsome structure on Bellona Avenue called "St. John's Church" is a
fine example of Victorian vernacular church architecture being 8 bosrd-and-
batten building made decorative by fishscale shingles, stained glass snd stylized
lancet-arch windows. Although constructed in 1886, it is not the originsl church
on this site. The present building replaces an earlier church of undstermined
date.

Both the Chiffel masp of 1852 snd the Taylor map of 1857 indicate a "Coloured
Methodist Meeting House" on this site and there is every rsesson to believe that
blacks have been worshipping here gince gquite a few ysars before Emancipation,

In addition to the church building itself the site contains two dwellings
and quite a few graves.

What is known loczlly as a “parsonage™ is a small stone housé§ one room down
and one above with a frame addition on the rear (west). No positive proof of its
age has been found but it is said to be the oldest of the three buildings on the
site and contemporary with the original church. Not the least interesting struc-
ture here is a frame bungalow which in its original state was a board-and-bstten
longitudinally oriented residence very similar in appearance and plan to designs
offered by Uervase Wheeler in the 19th century.

As a collection, these buildings snd the accompanying graveyard are scarce
evidence of the fact that blacks have been living, working and worshipping on
this site for over one~hundred years.and probably much longer. Before there
was a Ruxton or a Laske Roland this area was farmed in the manner of s plantation
and these buildings appear to be testimony to that fact.

# Stone House - See BA # 1771
Frame Bungalow - See BA # 1772
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

HINAME

HISTORIC

3t. John's Church
AND/OR COMMON

BALOCATION

STREET & N!_.JMBER
Bellona Ave.

CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
’ Towson —— VICINITY OF Nidth
STATE COUNTY
Merviand - Qo timore

" |FECLASSIFICATION

CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT —PUBLIC __OCCUPIED ' —AGRICULTURE  _MUSEUM
XBUILDING(S) LHRIVATE Z UNOCCUPIED —COMMERCIAL __PARK
—_STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS _EDUCATIONAL  __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT  ZRELIGIOUS
. —OBJECT —INPROCESS X_YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT  __SCIENTIFIC
—BEING CONSIDERED — YES: UNRESTRICTED — INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
—NO - —_MILITARY —_OTHER:
Y OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME .
Mery Z. C. Hughes et al Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER »
Unknown ‘
CITY, TOWN STATE, Zip code
- VICINITY OF
B LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber #: 77
COURTHOUSE, : Folio #: 581
ETC. v qs
) REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC. 1y~ b Building
. STREET & NUMBER
CITY. TOWN STATE
Towson
IJ REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
DATE

__FEDERAL __STATE __COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
S SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN ) STATE




DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT —_DETERIORATED X UNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
X.GOOD —RUINS —ALTERED —moveD  DATEEebh., 197
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Both the Chiffele 1852 and Taylor 1857 maps show a "Coloured Methodist
Meeting House" in this spot along the 01d Powder Mill Road (Bellond Avenue).
There are the remmants of a black community there today, the survivors being
three houses, s church, snd & graveyard. 4 family rents one of the houses,
the church is only used occasionslly snd the other two houses sre empty and
deteriorating. The graveyard is overgrown snd is disappeering. While it
seems certain that there was st least a church on this spot in the mid-19th
century (prior to Emancipation) the extsnt buildings do not asppear to date
prior to that period. The stone dwelling looks like the oldest in this
group of buildings, however, no materials can be sezn in it that are defi-~
nitely earlier than the late 19th century.

Church:

The cornerstone of the building identifies it as "St. Johns AU.M.P.
Church 4.D. 1886." Because of the 1850's maps it seems logical to assume
that this board-and-bastten structure, with its beautiful late Victorian
decorations, replaced the pre-1860's building in the 1880's. This church
is three narrow. bays wide and three longer bays deep. The tell windows and
doors are regular in their placement and have frames exhibliting & modified
lancet arch. HKach window has louvered shutters.

The exterior covering is board-and-batten with the gable ends being
decorated with fishscale shingles.

The gsble end roof is steeply pitched, is cpvered with modern shingles
and has & closed-cap interior flue chimney in the middle of its south side.

The east end is the ¥froni! of the building and is the most formal in
appearance. The lesncet arch entrance occupies the central bsy. It has a
Queen Anne style transom which compliments the occulus in the gasble above.
This circular opening is filled with colored gless fixed with a grid pattern
of mullions typicael of the Queen Anne fashion. The window was set at an
sngle, however, upsetting the harmony of the arrangement. ,

The fishsecsle portion of the gable is set off from the bosrd-aznd-bsiten
wall by & moulding utilizing the populsr Eastlake-like motif,

The interior could not be examined 2/6/79.

Graveyards

A large graveyard fills the back yards of the church, the stone dwelling,
and a cottage. It is overgrown and in poor condition with meny broken and
missing stones. There are several stones dsting from the 1870%s; most of the
others are later. The awkward almost irreverent relationships that the cot-
tage has with some of the graves suggests that it was built since many of the
graves were dug. ’

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



3
-
RNAY
gy
"
=~

Bl SIGNIFICANCE
~ QERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE X _RELIGION
~-1400-1499 _ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIb —_CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—.1500-1599 ~—AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS — LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 ~ XARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY ~SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —MUSIC —THEATER
X.1800-1899 __COMMERCE ——EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY - TRANSPORTATION
~1800- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
_INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1886 ' BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The hsndsome structure on Bellonz Avenue called "St. John's Church®
is a fine example of Victorien vermascular church architecture veing 2 board-
and-batten building made decorestive by fishscale shingles, stained glass and
stylized lancet-arch windows. 4lthough constructed in 1886, it is not the
originsl church on this site. The present building replaces an earlier church
of undetermined date.

3oth the Chiffel mep of 1852 snd the Taylor map of 1857 indicste a
" Coloured Methodist Meeting Hwm " on this slite and there is every reason 1o
believe that blacks have been worshipping here since quite a few years before
smancipation.

P In addition to the church building itself the site contains two dwellings
and quite a few graves.

What is locally known as a "parsonage! 1s a small stone house} one room
down and one above with a frame addition on the reer (west). No positive proof
of its age has been found but it is said to be the oldest of the three build-
ings on the site and contemporary with the original church. Not the least in-
teresting structure here is & frame bungaloﬁ*which in its original state was a
board-and~-batten longitudinally oriented residence very similar in appearance
and plan to designs offered by Gervase Wheeler in the 19th century.

As 2 collection, these buildings asnd the accompanying graveyard are

carce evidence of the fact thet blacks have been living, working and worship-
ping on this site for over one-hundred years and probsbly much longer. Before
there was a Ruxton or a Lake Roland this area was farmed in the manner of a
plentation and these buildings appear to be testimony to that fact.

(J
o
1))
[0]

s Stone House - See BA # 1771
- Frame Bungslow - See BA # 1772 -

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

NAME/ TITLE
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CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 1, ITEM 7; PAGE 2 ST. JOHN'S METHODIST
EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

The fishscale portion of the gable is set off from the board-
and-batten wall by a moulding utilizing the popular Eastlake type
of motif.

The interior of thé church (in 1981) is very plain, the walls
painted plaster. The nave is furnished with oak pews. There is a
rostrum fenced with oak railing. The oak lectern is flanked on
either side by an oak post supporting a circular globe for elec-
tric lights. On the left side of the rostrum is a piano, on the
left a 19th Century foot-powered organ. The organ is in an oak
frame with some gothic revival carving.

Viewed from the inside, the doors and window sashes are seen
to be ocak. The painted message "WELCOME TO ALL" over the lectern
on the rear wall is the only interior decoration.

2, Parsonage (As described by Wayne L. Nield, Historic Towson,

| Inc.):

The parsonage is a true one-and-a-half story dwelling with a
plan of one room up and one down, with a single room added to the
rear (or west). Dimensions are 20 feet, 8 inches on the main fa-
cade by a depth of 18 feet, 4 inches.

The walls are made of uncoursed brownish fieldstone that has
been stuccoed. The stone rises to the apex of the gables. There
is also a gable-end roof which has an almost oversized roof dor-
mer. There are no eaves on the ends, and even the sides have an
overhang of only 10 to 12 inches. While the dormer appears to be
original to the present roof, its six-light casements are not com-

patible with the four-light casements of the gables. Machine-sawn
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CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 2, ITEM 7, PAGE 3 'ST. JOHN*S METHODIST
EPISCOPAL CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE

rafters and cut wire nails suggest that if this building is more
than 80 or 90 years old, its roof has been changed.

Each end of the parsonage is windowless except for a small
casement window in each gable. That of the north is centralized
but the south window is off center to the west. It is interest-
ing to note that these deep casements are presently mounted on
the inside bay of the opening. The main facade faces east, as
does the church. It is three bays wide: a centrally located door
flanked by windows. The south window, however, is not as large
as the north and it may be an alteration. The door and north win-
dow share the same wooden jack arch and the taller north window
has a large fieldstone sill.

The west facade is nearly obliterated by the frame shed-
roofed addition. Interior examination suggests that it once had
a door on the northside and a single window on the southside of
it (which might have been the original appearance of the east fa-
cade as well).

The single room downstairs is characterized by the window-
less north wall and the presence of the enclosed stairs on the
south wall. A flue chimney occupies the center of the west wall
and separated the door and window.

The original mouldings of this room are a plain architrave
that is not unlike the design seen in some Federal period
houses.

It appears that the south window of the east wall was cut
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St. Johns Church/
Coloured Methodist Meeting House Site

—
LIBER FOLIO DATE GRANTOR GRANTEE
5477 L8l September 9, 1974 Mary Zdyth C. Hughes Mary Edyth C. Hughes
Thomas John Hughes
Lot # 2 on Plat of Montrose...northeast side of Northern Central
Rail Road with the northwest side of public road...northwest
binding on Reil Road...South 2° Bast line of whole tract of land
..ereversing ...2l - 65/100 perches to & stone...North 85 3/4°
Rast S% perches to nowthwest side of road...southeast on road
till beginning...2 acres, 1 rood and 18 square perches.
5297 60 January 15, 1958 Wlliam F. Mckewen Mary E. ©. Hughes
53l 212 Hovember 15, 1920 Charles J. Bouchet William *, Mckewen- & wf
('“ 53l 210- November 15, 1920 Willism F. Mckewen & wife Charles J. Bouchet
L98 59 April 5, 1918 James R. Warman Henry % Willism Mckewen
uss L77 December 29. 1915  James 3. Finman Mary Mildred Wright
(Also Helen Mckewen
133 109 July 21, 191k Bridget Roddy Helen Mckewen
(Finman's daughter)
39 365 January L4, 186l James L. McDaniel Owen Finman
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Tax Assessments

1876 Tax Assessment Record for Raltimore County District 9

St. John's Yethodist P, Church

Tract of land E. side N.C.R.Rd. near lLake Roland
1 scre, lefs church occup.

Improvements - 2 small stone houses.
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